THE ENTOMOLOGICAL SOCIETY OF AMERICA - EASTERN BRANCH

BUSINESS MEETING
Syracuse, NY Tuesday, March 11, 2008

Present: Eric Day, Alan Cameron, Doug Pfeiffer, Judy Hough-Goldstein, Loke Kok,
Dick Casagrande, Carolyn Klass, Dan Gilrein, Paul Weston, Bill Lamp, George
Hamilton, Peter Shearer, Rod Youngman, Faith Kuehn, Eric Day, Mark Taylor, Dan
Gilrein (minutes)

President called meeting to order at 7:15 am

Committee reports
President: Jim Lashomb
No report

Treasurer: Eric Day

Distributed Financial Statement (see attached) as of Dec, 31, 2007 covering
General Fund Jan 1 — Dec 31. There are four accounts including two working accounts,
savings and checking, and two reserve fund CDs. Checking: Receipts normal for us.
Disbursements were somewhat high in Harrisburg (table costs unanticipated)
Reserve funds are CDs - note Blue Ridge Bank is new name. There was a slight increase
in funds due to CDs

Alan noted the increase in reserve funds, and suggested a donation to the Foundation, use
for an award, etc. Rod pointed out that reserve funds were needed in case of a failed
meeting. George noted that room requirements and liability might mean as much as
$30,000 is needed to cover expenses. Loke suggested considering base amount we might
need to provide a level of safety. Rod said the amount should be conservative. Holiday
Inn vs Hilton have different contract structures. Bill wondered if net change should be
zero after meeting expenses were included. Eric pointed out that there are sometimes
unanticipated expenses, e.g. tables at Harrisburg. Bill asked about sending interest from
the CDs to the Foundation. Alan strongly suggests looking into possibility; $50,000 is
more than needed in our account. Loke suggests considering funding for students - how
can we encourage students to attend? Various ideas and suggestions were floated. Dick
Casagrande noted we are flirting with blizzards with our meeting timing, so maybe we
should consider another time for meeting? Rod noted old time was too expensive and
Alan pointed out it was just before the Annual Meeting. Doug said it was a matter of
balancing the scheduled time with financial risk. Dan asked about combining our meeting
with another association or group. George mentioned that it was done in New Haven with
the American Phytopathological Society. Doug said we would have better contracts with
hotel if more people attend. Eric reminded all that the contract hasn’t been signed for
2010 meeting, so this may be possible.

Secretary’s report (Dan Gilrein)
Thanks to Rod Youngman and others for assisting with the transition. All seems
to be going well so far. Nothing else to report. Minutes from the March 18 and 20, 2007



meetings were distributed. Motion was made to approve but Judy noted lack of a
quorum. Rod felt we could ‘accept’ the minutes but there was some uncertainty. Alan
moved to accept, Doug 2™. Majority approved.

Governing board: George Hamilton

George distributed Membership (Governing Board) report. Membership slightly
higher than 2006 with increase in ACE’s. Annual meeting very successful, slightly over
2400 & higher than total registrations previous year. All four journals saw overall
increase in impact factor of journals and number of citations. Finances: Society is doing
well. Investments of $5.18 M. Board hasn’t forgotten where we came from, continuing to
be fiscally frugal. Sections had business meetings at end of sessions last year. Heard
about networks, encourage us to make use of them, share document, information, will
make space available to network at annual meetings. Network can be as little as 2
persons. Report handout. Concerning reserve: Society does now maintain meeting
insurance in case of problem. George will find out. E.g. new model for publications with
no page charges, libraries may pick up costs. But libraries may balk. May also need to
handle greater submissions. George: Blackwell has made one proposal and had consultant
in to discuss this issue. But we are easing into it slowly. George noted that libraries are
looking to drop journals to help with financial problems. Bill: are journals going to
restrict numbers of papers submitted? Alan: there has been no discussion, but there has
been discussion of 60% acceptance rather than 4 — 50%, but emphasis has been on
accepting quality papers, not a percentage. Editors are encouraged to submit review
articles since they have most citations. Impact factors measures only last three years but
our articles continue to be cited long after, around 20 yrs.

Membership: Bill Lamp
No complaints to reports

President Elec: Rod Youngman

Not much to report. Main drive is meeting attendance, possible change in format,
attracting students. Responses from students, faculty: great idea to meet Sat — Monday, or
Fri - Sunday. Eric was able to change contract with Hilton to Friday 6 pm to Monday
noon. Only reception on Friday evening, also Saturday evening. Now slated Friday
March 20 to Monday March 2392009 in Harrisburg. If students stay extra night helps
room-night requirements.

Program Committee: Paul Weston
Relatively few cancellations despite weather, well done meeting, thanks to organizers

Public Information Committee: Faith Kuehn (emailed reports, attached).

Good turnout despite weather. Good media coverage, radio and TV, on channel 3
news. Thanks to C. Klass and D. Gilrein. Came out ahead in income. Alan: suggests Faith
be recognized for exceptional program this year. Eric 2nds. Event was active, well
received. Jim noted that she also did this in Charlottesville, but Harrisburg is difficult
due to cost for parking. Rod: may take a sabbatical next year, not confirmed. Jim noted
that Carolyn got a lot of help from Cornell, schools. Jim Steffel noted group from



Shipmansburg is here. Jim L. noted that Delaware Valley College also has a program.
Carolyn: Penn State even had an outreach and might be involved. Steve Jacobs is the
current person. Jim L. noted that Penn State participation was notably absent from
Harrisburg meeting, except for students. Bill noted problem with Harrisburg meeting is
cost. Eric mentioned we cold use a room in hotel for outreach to save hotel table charge -
possible rooms upstairs in mezzanine. Jim S. noted that Sunday was a good day for the
outreach but Rod felt we could deal with that despite new schedule. Jim L. felt the
outreach was very important, not just for children. Vote : all in favor of recognizing
Faith.

Local Arrangements: Carolyn Klass
Hotel was very accommodating, Rod had good service, Eric says easy to work
with so far. Jim L. wants to personally thank all who made the meeting successful.

Industry Sponsors: Jim Steffel
Jim will send electronic copy of committee report (see attached).

Other

Jim L. passed gavel to Rod and introduced new president. Rod: commented that
he appreciates all the help he has received. Expects to work hard for Harrisburg meeting.
Big job is to fill committees. (George H. doesn’t go off until 2009 but will check to
verify). Introduced next president-elect Loke Kok. Rod moved to adjourn at 8:11 am;
Dan seconded

Attachments

Governing board handout
Outreach report

Industry Sponsor Committee report
Minutes March 18 and 20, 2007
Financial statements



ESA Governing Board Report for 2007

The governing board met on December 7, 8, 9 and 12 2007 to discuss the matters of the
society. The following is a synopsis of various items that were addressed.

Membership

* Overall membership for 2007 is currently 5,921 as compared to 5,817 for 2006.

* New members have surged against last year's numbers (currently at 827 as
compared to 797 for 2006) and are closing in on our 2005 new member mark
(990).

* A large jump in ACEs from 98 to 114 (likely due to the ACE marketing and expo
shows in Texas, Florida, and New York).

* A small jump in BCEs from 402 to 406.

Annual Meeting
Annual Meeting pre-registrations totaled 2,425 vs. total registrations of 2,195 in 2006

Journals
*  Our four journals’ combined impact factor had grown 62% over 2002
* Journal citations have also grown.

Finances
¢ Revenue for 2007 were higher than budgeted
* As of September 30, 2007, investments had grown by $402,698.
* Overall investments, as of September 30, 2007, totaled $5.18 million.

ESA Renewal

The changes to the structure of ESA became official at the end of the 2007 business
meeting on December 13, 2007. Following the meeting each of the new sections met for
the first time to discuss business related to governance and the 2008 annual meeting in
Reno, NV on November 16-19.

The new sections are:

Systematics, Evolution and Biodiversity

Integrative Physiology and Molecular Insect Systems
Structural, Veterinary and Public Health Systems
Plat-Insect Ecosystems

Networks
Anyone can create their own network. All that is needed is two members with a common
interest. Currently the society has 45 networks.

If you would like to start a Network, please contact Chris Stelzig at cstelzig@entsoc.org
with




the name of your Network

any description you have of your Network (e.g., what unifies you as a group)
the "type" of Network (see below)

contact information for the person in charge (for now) of your group
information about how new members can join your Network

MBS

Respectfully submitted,

George Hamilton
Eastern Branch ESA Governing Board Representative



Report to the Executive Committee

Eastern Branch, Entomological Society of America

2008 Outreach Program

The Eastern Branch, ESA’s outreach program is entitled, “It’s a Bug’s World”, and is
designed to showcase collectors, authors, naturalists, artists, and extension services local to the
area of the Branch’s Annual Meeting. Following from the Eastern Branch, ESA’s Executive
Committee’s 2006 approval for exhibitors to sell items, the 2008 program had a very limited
number of exhibitors selling insect-related items. The program was held on March 09, 2008 from
1:00 — 5:00PM in the Grand Ballroom of the Holiday Inn, Syracuse/Liverpool.

I met with Holiday Inn Sales Representatives, along with Carolyn Klass of Cornell and
Jeff Heuther on September 21, 2007 to discuss program logistics. I had developed a list of
possible displays and activities, and Carolyn and Jeff provided names of potential contacts in the
area. Two planned exhibitors cancelled out at the last minute, NY Department of Agriculture &
Marketing and Carrie Murray Nature Center.

The following people and organizations were exhibitors at the 2008 It’s a Bug’s World:

Name Organization/ Exhibit Name

Doug Fleury Caterpillar Catalyst Silk Culture and Courtly Musicians
Yong-Lak Park West Virginia University Origami

Patty Weisse Baltimore Woods Centers for Nature Education

Eric Rittmeyer Cornell Herpetology Club Bug eaters

Ronda Hamm Cornell Roach Foot Art

David Gracer

Sunrise Land Shrimp

Insects: Gourmet Fast Food

Heather Harmon

Delaware Department of

Native Bees

Agriculture
Mike Griggs Cornell Honey bees
Roberta Glatz Squash bees
Erich Kuehn Opi’s Bug Treasures
Art Agnello, Harvey Cornell Apple Insect Game
Reissig
Craft Build-a-Bug
Allison Taisey Cornell Maggot Bucket & Vet Entomology

Colleen Bernard

NYS Zoo at Thompson Park

Biofacts, bugeaters, butterfly house
display

Doug Tallamy University of Delaware Insect slide show

Stephanie Everett Face painting

Melissa Fierke SUNY Dept. Environ. and Invasive insects
Forest Biology

Carolyn Klass Cornell 4-H, invasive insects

Publicity

A flyer and press release were developed (attachments). Both were posted on the Eastern
Branch ESA’s website. Dan Gilrein and Carolyn Klass were very helpful in both sending out
these documents, and providing a list of potential media outlets. I printed out approximately 500




each of the flier and press release, and sent them to Carolyn. She sent them to schools within a
30-35 mile radius of Syracuse, for a total of $210.72 in mailing costs, to be reimbursed to
Cornell. Carolyn also sent notice of the program to the NY State 4H listserve. Dan Gilrein sent
copies of the fliers to the NY NEC Forest Health Division, Cornell Extension — Onondaga Co,
Cornell IPM Program, SUNY Cobleskill, SUNY Cortland, PA Department of Agriculture, NY
Department of Agriculture, and PA DCNR. I sent the press release to the Family Life/Kids
Editors of the following newspapers: Syracuse Post Standard, Ithaca Journal, Cortland Standard,
The Daily Orange, Syracuse New Times and Scotsman Pennysaver. I contacted two local TV
stations, WSTM TV3 and WTVH TVS5.

WSTM interviewed Art Agnello of the Cornell Experiment Station on March 7. Jim
Lashomb was interviewed by Channel 3, Syracuse on March 7. Terry Ettinger, the host of a
garden show, “Weeder’s Digest” on AM radio station, WSYR had noted the press release on the
web. He put a note about the program in his blog and interviewed me during the March 8 show.
The Family/Kids editor for the Syracuse Post Standard called me for an interview, put an article
about the program in Friday’s newspaper and posted it on the online calendar. Pictures from the
program were aired on the March 9 evening news, Channel 3.

Budget
The income for the program was $500 from the Eastern Branch, ESA, a $1000

sponsorship from the Delaware Department of Agriculture, and $39.49 in contributions from the
“Donations” cans, for a total of $1539.49. Expenses were and $400 for David Gracer, $125 to
Doug Fleury, $110 to Stephanie Evans, $60 to the Cornell Herp Club, $300 to the NY State Zoo
and $210.72 to Cornell, for a total of $1145.72. This leaves a positive balance of $354.28.
Several incidental expenses, such as craft supplies and color printing of brochures and fliers, were
covered by me.

Attendance

Carolyn and I estimated that at least 500 people attended Bug’s World. Having a variety
of exhibits, and many interactive displays seemed to really engage the crowd. Some of the most
popular appeared to be Build-a-Bug, the Insect Chef, and the face painting. For future programs,
it would be important to have a few volunteers to help with crafts and logistics, as I had to draft
Carolyn, Heather Harmon and Susan King to help with Build a Bug.

Respectfully submitted,

Faith Kuehn
Eastern Branch, ESA Outreach Co-Chair
March 11, 2006

Attachments:
Flyer
Press Release



The Entomological Society of America Eastern Branch Executive Committee
Meeting, Harrisburg, Pennsylvania

Sunday, 18 March 2007, Meeting Minutes (prepared by R. R. Youngman)

Officers present: Art Agnello, Eric Day, George Hamilton, Bill Lamp, Pete Schultz,
and Rod Youngman

Members present: Dick Bean, Dan Gilrein, Scott Hutchins, Greg Krawczyk, Richard
Levine, Anne Nielsen, Paula Shrewsbury, and Paul Weston

Art called the meeting to order at 9:20 a.m. and asked for a round of introductions. He
then asked Scott Hutchins, current President of ESA if he would like to make a few
comments.

Scott thanked Art for his introduction and for allowing him to address the Executive
Committee. He said these are really exciting times for our Society. The organizational
renewal and restructuring is progressing very well and hoped we would take the time to
read the special edition of the ESA Newsletter that should be out soon. There are 48
pages detailing the changes to the current ESA Constitution and Bylaws as they are rolled
into the new Bylaws.

The ESA Governing Board at their 13-15 June 2006 meeting, met to finalize the
restructuring process and begin efforts to bring it to a vote in 2007. On 2 March 2007 the
Governing Board met again to finalize the Bylaws text. Scott said the organizational
renewal article in the latest ESA newsletter was largely written by Richard Levine, and
added that Richard has done a great job with the whole renewal process as well as with
all the revisions associated with this change. Scott said the branches will not be affected
with all the changes occurring at The Society level. Branches will still function as they
always have. They will keep their Constitution and Bylaws, hold annual meetings,
collect dues, etc. Scott thanked Art again for allowing him to address The Branch
membership on Sunday evening (18 March) on the latest updates on the renewal and
restructuring, and pending vote.

Scott then commented that Asa Fitch will be the topic of the Founder’s Memorial Speech
at the 2007 annual meeting in San Diego. He then gave a brief update on what has been
happening at ESA headquarters since Paula Lettice left. We are in the process of
searching for a new Executive Director. Ann Kenworthy is our interim Executive
Director who is doing a great job and is expected to remain in the position until we hire a
permanent Executive Director. Scott said that Richard Levine is our newest staff member
who fills the role of Society Relations Officer.

Scott said we worked with Tri-Societies last year to help run the 2006 annual meeting in
Indianapolis. They worked behind the scenes with very favorable results, and added we
will work with them again in 2007 for our San Diego meeting. He said that over thirty



symposium topics have been nominated for the 2007 meeting program; nominations for
member section and program sections are greater than ever; child care will be offered for
the first time at an annual meeting; and they are looking at an expanded guest program in
San Diego. In addition, ESA has a request for proposals to digitize back issues of ESA
journals.

Scott concluded his remarks by mentioning that the next International Congress of
Entomology will be held in South Africa, and that our 2008 annual meeting will be held
in Reno.

Art thanked Scott for his comments and then asked Richard Levine if he would care to
make a few comments.

Richard thanked Art, and said he was hired in December 2006. His primary position
responsibilities include public relations; media relations; helping with national and
branch elections; and editing the ESA Newsletter. Also, given the recent attention by the
public and media about bedbugs, he helped with the republication of the 1966
Monograph of Cimicidae by Thomas Say. He added that the new ESA calendar has
received many favorable comments.

Art asked Richard if he had any entomological background. Richard said he did not, but
added he does have an agricultural background. In addition, he has worked with
communications companies on agricultural issues, such as Bt crops, no-till farming, and
pesticides. Dan asked Richard how he fields entomological questions. Richard says he
goes to the ESA membership directory, and for those entomologists who have
volunteered to assist, he keeps a spreadsheet of their names and areas of specialization.
Paula told Richard about the University of Maryland Home and Garden Information
Center. She said he may find our information center helpful when attempting to field
pest questions about the home and garden.

Bill asked about morale at ESA headquarters given all the recent changes. Scott said the
workload has been heavy but morale is good. He said we are considering rehiring some
positions, and added that the interim director is looking at how we may want to recast
these positions.

Art asked Richard if he and Chris Stelzig coordinate their responsibilities. Richard says
he does to some extent, but Chris works much closer with the membership. Chris sends
out email blasts to the membership, in addition to handling such things as internal
communications, awards, elections, and overseeing the annual meeting conference. In
addition, Chris helps fill the rosters for ESA committees, and he helps with media
relations and public relations. Richard added that Alan Kahan is our director of
communications as well as the person in charge of all publications and print production.

Executive Committee Reports

President’s Report:



Art began by expressing his appreciation to all his committee members and said, “It
certainly made my job easier”. He’s working to ensure a smooth transition for Jim
Lashomb. He told Jim his main job early on is filling his committees; most of them are
relatively easy to fill, but the program co-chair is one that can be difficult. He added that
all his committee chairs did a good job and that he would have not been able to do
anything with out the help of Eric, Rod, and Pete. He confessed he was always interested
in the Eastern Branch and always went to the meetings. However, he felt the branches
were more for students, and wrestled with the idea of doing away with them. He said his
tenure as President has changed his mind about the importance of branches to The
Society.

Past-President’s Report:

Pete said one of the main responsibilities of his job as immediate Past-President is to find
nominees for the L. O. Howard and Herbert T. Streu awards. He is pleased to report that
David Pimentel and Jim Stimmel are this year’s respective recipients for the L. O.
Howard and Herbert T. Streu awards. In addition, Pete feels it is the immediate Past-
President’s duty to council the President-Elect; especially with regard to filling the many
committee assignments that turn over every year.

President-Elect’s Report:

Jim began by saying he has attended many high quality Eastern Branch meetings over the
years. He graciously credits Maryland and Virginia as being largely responsible for this.
Jim went on to say that Peter Shearer has agreed to serve as co-chair to Paul Weston on
the program committee, and that Jeff Huether has volunteered to serve on the public
outreach committee. Jim concluded his remarks by saying he is looking forward to a
good meeting in 2008.

Treasurer’s Report:

Eric informed everyone that he is starting his second, three-year term as treasurer of the
Eastern Branch. He passed around copies of his category summary reports dated 14
March 2007 for 01/01/06-12/31/06 and 01/01/07-03/14/07. He pointed out that we ended
up with a net loss of $3,242.66 for the 2006 Charlottesville annual meeting. Funds from
the PEF ($2,613.00) and sponsors ($5,400.00) were relatively stable, as were the
secretary’s expenses for awards and executive committee travel expenses to the summer
business and planning meeting and annual meeting. What really hurt us was the lower
than expected meeting attendance and room attrition. The hotel let us out of about
20% room attrition; however, we did have a room attrition expense of $237.30. On
the second summary report dated 01/01/07-03/14/07, Eric said the $10,902 figure looks
good, but cautioned it will drop after this meeting. He is hoping to get an additional 30-
40 on-site registrants before the end of this meeting.

Eric then reported on the financial statement dated 14 March 2007. He said that as of 1
January 2007 the combined balance of the checking and savings accounts was
$18,563.06. As of 14 March 2007, the combined balance of the checking ($18,143.53)
and savings ($419.53) accounts is slightly larger ($18,563.14) because of the interest
earned from the savings account. Eric then discussed the reserve funds. The amount in



the reserve funds as of 14 March 2007 is $50,235.49. This figure is the sum of the
certificates of deposits held with the Blue Ridge Bank ($34,472.29) and Wachovia Bank
($15,763.20); both of which are located in Blacksburg, Virginia. He concluded his
remarks by saying when the $18,563.14 from the combined checking and savings
accounts is added to the $50,235.49 from the reserve funds, the total funds available to
the Eastern Branch as of 14 March 2007 are $68,798.34.

George commented that on-site registration is a problem because of the time it takes, and
added it definitely is better if people pre-register for the annual meeting. Dan added that
he and Mark Taylor have organized a full day Ornamentals and Turf symposium, which
includes recertification credits for $55.00 per person. Rod asked about attendance figures
for the event. Dan said there are currently about 50 attendees. Paul suggested looking at
who signed up for registration credits. Dan said we definitely need to do a better job of
advertising the program’s relevant content and recertification credits for future programs.
Paula thanked Dan for organizing the Ornamentals and Turf symposium, and Eric
thought it might help increase our paid membership.

Eric went back to his financial report and said the reserve fund is in order. He said he has
detailed records on file for anyone to inspect. Pete commented on the remark Alan
Cameron made about the large reserve fund at last year’s final business meeting.
Specifically, Alan wondered if The Branch might consider setting aside $10,000 -
$15,000 for a student scholarship fund. Pete went on to say he was not supportive of this
idea because The Branch needs this money for those times of bad weather or when
meeting attendance just happens to be lower than expected. For example, the Eastern
Branch lost about $3,000.00 at the Charlottesville meeting last year because of low
attendance. George recalled the 1999 blizzard which drastically cut attendance to the
Harrisburg meeting. Fortunately, the hotel honored their “act of God” clause and forgave
us our debt. Bill wondered if we might be able to eventually get the reserve fund to some
stable state, and then start giving something back to The Branch. Eric said he could look
into calculating the absolute expenses for the annual meeting with the idea of applying
what remains to a student scholarship. Dan remarked that expenses are going up all the
time and then asked Eric about the level of sponsorship for the current meeting. Eric said
this year’s sponsor’s contributions are about $6,000 - $7,000. He added this is typically
what we receive from year to year. Paula asked about the benefits the sponsors receive.
Eric said our sponsors are offered vendorship privileges such as free registration, their
name in the meeting program, and on The Branch website.

George returned to the 1999 Harrisburg meeting and recounted some of the problems the
bad weather caused us. For example, non-attendees wanted a refund or to have their
registration fees transferred over to the next meeting. Bill asked about the possibility of
having ESA take over the accounting for the branches. Scott said ESA is not looking to
do this at this time. All the branches are doing well with regard to their finances. He
added that branch finances will not be affected by the organization renewal. Sections
will be able to collect dues; however, they will be subject to financial accounting with
The Society. Eric asked Scott about the shape of the reserve funds for the other branches.
Scott commented they are all about the same as ours.



Secretary’s Report:
Rod began by handing out copies of his minutes for the 2 June 2005 Business and
Planning meeting and 12 March 2006 Executive Committee meeting.

Rod asked for a motion to accept these minutes.

A motion was made to accept the minutes.

Art asked, “Do we have a second?”

The motion was seconded.

Art asked for any discussion.

There was no discussion.

The motion was unanimously approved.

Voting members: Agnello, Day, Hamilton, Lamp, Schultz, and Youngman.

Rod then went over the results of the special election with regard to several changes to
the Eastern Branch Constitution and Bylaws. The election was conducted using ESA’s
online voting process. The voting period ran from 27 October 2006, 12:00 a.m. EST — 10
December 2006, 11:59 p.m. EST.

All eight proposed changes passed by more than a two-thirds majority as required by the
Eastern Branch Constitution and Bylaws. The following is a breakdown of the voting
results for each of the eight proposed changes:

1. Proposed change: Reduce the voting period from 45 days to 30 days.
Approve: 118

Disapprove: 17

Abstained: 1

2. Proposed change: Allow ballot results to be announced by listserv.
Approve: 132

Disapprove: 4

Abstained: 0

3. Proposed change: Allow for electronic balloting to establish or terminate a
standing committee.

Approve: 133

Disapprove: 3

Abstained: 0

4. Proposed change: Eliminate the requirement for the Nominating Committee to
obtain a specific number of candidates to run for Branch office.

Approve: 103

Disapprove: 31

Abstained: 2



5. Proposed change: Revise the Bylaws paragraphs on committees to state the
committee purpose first and the membership of the committee second.

Approve: 134

Disapprove: 2

Abstained: 0

6. Proposed change: Define the role of the Insect Detection, Evaluation and
Prediction (IDEP) Committee.

Approve: 135

Disapprove: 0

Abstained: 1

7. Proposed change: Revise language of the Committee on Public Information.
Approve: 130

Disapprove: 3

Abstained: 3

8. Proposed change: Insert the word “calendar” before each mention of “days”
wherever mentioned in the Constitution and Bylaws. For example, “30 days” will
be changed to “30 calendar days”.

Approve: 127

Disapprove: 9

Abstained: 0

Art asked if there were further items for Rod. None were raised. Art thanked Rod for his
two terms of service to the Eastern Branch.

Eastern Branch Governing Board Representative’s Report:

George said his December report is on the Eastern Branch website and added that Scott
covered most of what he had to say for his report. George mentioned that Society
membership is on track, and that he plans to talk about the renewal at tonight’s session.

Member At-Large:
Bill said his job is to be alert for any concerns the membership might have about the
Eastern Branch. He added that he has nothing to report.

Standing Committee Reports

Awards Committee:
Pete Schultz; present; no written report.

Pete said he has already covered what he wanted to say in his earlier remarks. Paula
commented about the recurring problem of low nominations for awards and asked Scott
if this is common among the other branches. Scott said it is; some branches do a better
job than others. The problem is getting people to apply. He singled out Nebraska’s
entomology department as an example of one department that does a good job with



applications. Scott added he has streamlined information on awards on the ESA website.
Art said we need to do a better job of promoting these awards. The place to start is with
CEDA heads; we do that for special elections. Rod suggested moving up the call for
nominations and extending the deadline to give prospective nominees more time. Scott
said folks younger in their careers tend to target folks within the first 5-10 years on the
job.

Membership Committee:
Nicolas Ellis; not present; (Message to Art: I have no report, do you? I have in my
notes that you gave Nick’s report.)

Program Committee:
Paula Shrewsbury; present; no written report.

Paula said it was great working with Paul Weston, her co-chair, and added that Peter
Shearer will be an excellent co-Chair for 2007-08. Art reflected that we have a pretty
good program this year thanks to the hard work of Paula and Paul. Art gave credit to Jim
Steffel for putting together this year’s poster and sponsor venue session in addition to
crediting Dan Gilrein and Mark Taylor for organizing the full day Ornamentals and Turf
symposium.

IDEP Committee:

Dick Bean; present; (Message to Art: | have no IDEP report, do you? Dick
was present, but all | have for his remarks are the following:) Dick
mentioned his and Jim Stimmel’s role in organizing this year’s IDEP symposium
entitled: “Status updates on invasive insects of concern in the northeast”. He is
pleased with the speakers they have lined up. Paul expressed his thanks to Dick
for organizing the IDEP symposium because we’re always having to deal with
new insects coming in.

Meeting Site Selection Committee:
Eric Day; present; no written report.

Eric said we have booked for 85 room nights for this meeting, but have only met 61 at
this time. He noted, however, that the hotel is booked. We currently have 105
registered and are booked for 155 at the banquet. Our next meeting will be held in
Syracuse at the Liverpool Holiday Inn Lodge and Conference Center from 9-11 March
2008. Eric thinks will be returning to a more southern locale for our 2010 meeting. A
question was raised about the benefits of using a conference organizer. Scott remarked
that it provides negotiating leverage when booking meetings. Someone then asked if we
are locked into a Sunday-Tuesday meeting format. Dan commented, if Sunday helps
with the success of the public outreach session, then yes. Art said it comes down to a
sacrifice for work or family. Also, holding the student competition on Sunday helps the
students return to classes and labs on Monday.

Nominations Committee:



Tom Kubhar; not present; report submitted.

Art read Tom’s report. Tom wrote that our recent election for Eastern Branch officers
was done electronically through ESA. He pointed out this was the second time we have
held our elections this way and felt the process went very well. The total number of votes
for the 2007 election were 193 (about 16% of The Branch membership). He compared
this to the 157 total votes cast electronically in 2006 and pointed out the increase in voter
participation this year compared to last year. The results of the 2007 election for
President-Elect and Secretary were Roger R. Youngman and Daniel O. Gilrein,
respectively. In addition, Tom wrote that Paul Weston (Cornell University) has
expressed an interest in running for President-Elect in 2008.

Public Information Committee and Outreach Program Committee:
Faith Kuehn; not present; report submitted.

Art said Faith is currently busy with the outreach program, which runs from 1:00-5:00
p.m. today. It is being held again in the Whitaker Center for Science and the Arts. Faith
has done a very good job with this year’s program. George said the Whitaker Center has
always been willing to work with us. Art went on to comment on a few additional
aspects of Faith’s report. She publicized this meeting by developing and releasing a
flyer, press release, and brochure. These items were posted to The Branch website and
the Whitaker Center website in addition to being sent out to over a dozen media sources.
Art then commented on Faith’s budget. She received $300.00 from the Eastern Branch
and $1,000 from the Delaware Department of Agriculture. Budgeted expenses totaled
$1,450. An unexpected expense was the $770 for table rental. She needed 29 tables;
seven were provided at no cost from the Whitaker Center. However, the remaining 22
were provided at $35 per table from Hilton’s Convention Services. Eric said we have
$1,500 budgeted for tables in our contract. Someone asked about raising The
Branch contribution for the public outreach program. Eric suggested raising it to
$500. Rod asked if anyone knows if Faith plans to continue to offer “It’s a Bug’s World
in 2008. Someone commented that she was.

Paula asked if there exists a list of committee responsibilities. Art says it formally exists
on The Branch website. Paula suggested we send it out to all committee chairs. Art said
he printed them out when he contacted prospective committee chairs to let them know
what was involved. Pete added that we tend to lose continuity with one person
committees.

Rules Committee:
Susan King; not present; no written report.

Art spoke with Susan and she said she has nothing to report other than to say she’s happy
all The Branch Bylaws passed.

Parliamentarian Committee:
Susan King; not present; no written report.



Art said Susan had nothing to report.

Screening for ESA Awards Committee:
Tracy Leskey; not present; report submitted.

Art commented on a few aspects of her report. Dr. Michael Hoffmann was the 2006
Eastern Branch nominee for the ESA Entomological Foundation Award for Excellence in
Integrated Pest Management. In 2007, Jim Stimmel was the Eastern Branch nominee for
Distinguished Achievement in Regulatory Entomology, and Dr. Larry Hull was the
nominee for the Entomological Foundation Award for Excellence in Integrated Pest
Management. Tracy encouraged members of The Branch to increase participation in the
awards process by nominating their colleagues for these awards.

Student Affairs Committee:
Anne Nielsen; not present; report submitted.

Art read Anne’s report. Anne had three goals for her committee: To encourage greater
student participation at The Branch level; nominate award winners through an election
process for the John H. Comstock and Asa Fitch awards; and organize or help the student
events at The Branch annual meeting.

She met her first goal through frequent emails about updates on deadlines and
opportunities in regard to student competition, awards, and symposia. Anne was very
pleased with the number of nominations for the 2007 student awards. There were seven
applications for the John H. Comstock award and four for the Asa Fitch award. Andrew
E. Z. Short received the John H. Comstock award and Wilma Aponte-Cordero received
the Asa Fitch award.

Anne felt the nomination procedures currently in place need clarification particularly
with regard to self-nomination. Some departments have a student award nomination
committee, while others do not. Consequently, multiple applications come from one
department, whereas only a single application comes from those departments with a
student awards committee. She’s in favor of modifying the nomination procedure to
allow only one application per department. Rod said he would work with Anne or the
new chair to help revise the nomination procedure. Ezra Schwartzberg will be taking
over as chair of the student awards committee for 2007-2008.

Anne’s committee organized the student symposium, “Taxonomy and Phylogenetics in
the Modern Scientific Community”. The speakers will showcase different applications of
evolutionary studies in today’s field of Entomology.

Anne has updated the operating procedures for her committee. In addition, she was
selected as a Student Representative for the National ESA SAC and was subsequently
elected to Co-Chair the committee.



Ad Hoc Committees

Auditing Committee:
Roy Van Driesche; not present; report submitted.

Art commented from Roy’s report that the Eastern Branch finances were well organized
and in proper order. Eric added there are no outstanding bills.

Archivist Historian:
George Hamilton; present; no written report.

George thanked everyone for sending emails and has recently updated them on website.
Pete commented about the difficulty of getting information for the Dick Hoffmaster
obituary. Fortunately, Alan Cameron was able to provide him with valuable information
about Dick Hoffmaster.

Board of Certified Entomologists:
Henry Hogmire; not present; submitted minutes from the BCE Board and Business
Meeting held in Indianapolis on 9 December 2006.

Corporate Support Coordinator:
Jim Steffel; not present; (Message to Art: I have no report, do you? I have no
comments.)

Entotoons:
Gary Miller; not present; no written report.

Linnaean Games:
Doug Pfeiffer; not present; no written report.

Local Arrangements:
Greg Krawczyk; present; (Message to Art: I have no report, do you?)

Parliamentarian:
Susan King; not present; no written report.

Registration and Hospitality Committee:
Mark Taylor; not present; no written report.

Art said Mark was busy running the registration desk. Eric said there are currently 105
registered for the meeting, and he reiterated his hope for an additional 30-40 on-site
registrants before the end of the meeting.

Resolutions Committee:
Currently vacant.



Student Competition Committee:
Brian Nault; not present; no written report.

Art said Brian is currently busy judging the student paper competition and that he has
done a good job. Student competition is up from last year. There are 23 oral
presentations and 7 posters in this year’s competition. The increase in entries is likely
due to the increase in the prize money and meeting location. Someone commented
moving from four symposia per session period to three helped with attendance. It was
noted that attendance was low in last year’s student competition, which was largely
attributed to the four symposia per session format.

Listserv and Webmaster:
Rod Youngman; present; no written report.

Rod said he continues to update both The Branch listserv and website. He said ESA
provides branch secretaries quarterly updates on branch membership. Rod retrieves the
names and emails of any new Eastern Branch members and then adds them to the listserv.
He adds (or removes) anyone who requests to be added to the listserv. Rod briefly
commented about The Branch website saying he basically updates the website throughout
the year. Most updates concern the annual meeting, awards, executive officer elections,
and special elections.

Someone then asked Scott about nominations for ESA’s Executive Committee. He said
we receive rich and robust nominations at the national level. He added there are great
leadership opportunities at the national level.

Rod called for a motion to drop the minimum age requirement for voting in The Branch
Bylaws. Before a motion was made, Scott and George said ESA has the same minimum
age requirement, and said it is a legal matter.

Art asked for any new business. No new business was raised; however, before Art
adjourned the meeting, he reminded Jim about scheduling the summer business planning

meeting.

Art thanked everyone for their hard work and then adjourned the meeting at 11:55 a.m.



